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THE OSBURN HOUSE 
Second of two articles
The twentieth century brought
changes to American life in general, and 

the Osburn House was no exception.  
Although the Sunday dinners and the 
livery were still mentioned, by 1915, ads 
talk about catering to “automobile and 
special parties.”  The proprietor changed 
as well; Nicholas Kelly purchased the
hotel in 1907, and owned it until 1922. 
Sometime during this period, the second
floor was converted to a meeting hall for 
the Fairport Grange.  They created two 
large rooms, one with an attached kitchen.  One room was used for dining and the other for meetings.   A variety of social events including dances, weddings, and, apparently, even the occasional basketball game were held there. Jack Ryan’s bar on the first floor, however, was still a popular destination.

W. Lines Baker purchased the building in 1922. (His daughter, Eunice Skeates, is still a Fairport resident.)  He completely renovated and rebuilt the structure, converting the hotel, according to one source, into “one of the most complete gas and auto service stations in the state.”  His father, Frank J. Baker, joined him in the business that they named the Fairport Oil Company.  The Bakers operated a Chevrolet sales agency there as well which was housed in an addition to the original building.  They also had service stations in the village of Fairport, East Rochester, and Pittsford.  After the untimely death of W. Lines, who was hit by a car and killed in front of his Pittsford facility, and Frank’s death several years later,  Lois Baker leased the building to Max Humphrey, who had worked there for a number of years.  He used the facility to store auto parts and tires and sold American Gas from the gas pump that stood where the front porch canopy had been.  The old gas tanks were above the ground and kept filled so that when customers came, the fuel would run down and into their tanks.

In 1938, the elegant old Osburn Hotel was demolished and a rather ordinary, but functional, concrete building was constructed on the site which Max Humphrey continued to lease and to run as an Amoco gas station until his retirement.  That building was subsequently leased and then sold to Sidney Spafford and then to the Conking and Calabrese building supply company. It has housed several businesses in the past ten years.  Currently, the structure is home to the “Higher Ground” coffee shop.  The H.P. Neun Box Company buildings were constructed on another portion of the old hotel property. 
